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impaired by her absence, and that she could hold the same as exempt
from sale on exécution. In Brettun v. Fox, supra, it was held that a
widow who continued to use, for the purpose of storing furniture,
after her husband’s death, a room in a dwelling house occupied and
owned by him at the time of his death as a homestead, continued to
occupy the homestead within the meaning of the statute. It was said
by the court that the use of the room for the purpose of keeping her
furniture was “continuing to occupy the homestead.”

We have carefully examined the case of Jarvais v. Moe, 38 Wis,
440, cited and relied upon by the complainant, and find nothing in con-
flict with the conclusion here reached. The court there said:

“The statute does not limit the measure of removal, but it does the kind
of removal. ' .Absence is licensed without limit, so that the homestead re-
mains a homestead for the exemption to operate upon. As suggested by
PAINE, J.,, in Re Phelan, 16 Wis, 76, the owner may visit the antipodes
without forfeiture of exemption, so that his purpose is essentially tempo-

rary, anlmo revertendi to his homestead as his homestead, and not of in-
definite absence,” :

On the facts of this case the court came to the conclusion that when
Jarvais removed from his home where he had resided into an hotel,
owned by him, he did so with the intention of abandoning his former
residence, and of making the hotel thereafter his permanent home.
‘We hold that the facts in the pregent case make it manifest that the
deceased never left his home in the Eau Claire House with the inten-
tion of abandoning it as his home, but, on the contrary, that the ani-
mus revertendi was always fixed and present with him when absent
therefrom. This conclusion makes it unnecessary to consider the
other questions discussed in the opinion of the court below and argued
by counsel here. The decree of the court below is affirmed, at the
sost of the appellant.

ROBINSON v. ALABAMA & G. MFG. CO.
(Circuit Court, N. D. Georgia. February 23, 1898.)

1. MorRTGAGE FORECLOSURE — MORTGAGEE A8 PURCHASER UNDER ERRONEOUS
+ DECREE— A CCOUNTING. .

A mortgage creditor in possession as & purchaser in good faith under an
erroneous decree of foreclosure, afterwards reversed, is chargeable on
restitution with only the profits actually earned by the property, unless
guilty of willful default in management, by reason of which the earnings
were less than they would have been under ordinarily careful and prudent
management,

2. SAME—INSURANCE PREMIUMS,

In such accounting, where the mortgagor has been held entitled to res-
titution, the purchaser stands in the position of a mortgagee in possession,
and where he has kept the property insured, though in his own name,
should be ecredited with the premiums paid for such insurance, which in
case of loss would have inured to the benefit of the mortgagor.

8. Equity PracTICE—HEARING BEFORE MASTER—EVIDENCE.

The use of books of account by a master, after they had been impeached
as books of original entry and excluded as evidence, the entries, how-
ever, not having been shown to be incorrect or fraudulently made, as data
for finding other evidence, and the consideration, in stating the account, of
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such entries as were corroborated by other evidence, was not error which
invalidated his findings.
4. MORTGAGES—MORTGAGEE IN PossEssIoN—RENTS AND ProriTs.

A mortgagee lawfully in possession of the mortgaged property, though
as purchaser under an erronmeous decree of foreclosure afterwards re-
versed, while accountable for the rents and profits during the time of
such possession, has also the right to apply the same on the mortgage debt
as against the mortgagor or any purchaser from him of the equity of re-
demption; and where there has been a resale of the property, and he
has obtained a deficiency judgment against the mortgagor before the ac-
counting is had, he may have such judgment set off against the amount
found due from him.

5. SAME—SCOPE OF ACCOUNTING.

Where a purchaser of a cotton mill at a foreclosure sale, afterwards set .
aside, was placed in possession by the court, and during such possession
used certain material found in the mill not covered by the mortgage, on
restitution of the property and an accounting for rents and profits the
court has jurisdiction to also require an accounting for such material.

8. EQuiTy PRACTICE—~STATEMENT OF ACCOUNT BY MASTER—INTEREST.

Where a master has stated an account, allowing interest on some items,
and not on others, and the report is confirmed without exception on that
ground, the amount stated will be regarded as including the interest at
the time of the report.

Intervention of the Huguley Manufacturing Company for account-
ing for rents, issues, and profits.

B. F. Abbott and Dorsey, Brewster & Howéll, for complainants.
W. R. Hammond, John M. Chilton, John C. Reed, and Allan Fort,
for defendants.

NEWMAN, District Judge. The greater part of the previous
history of this case can be found in the opinions of the court in Rob-
inson v. Manufacturing Co., 51 Fed. 268; Id., 6 C. C. A. 75, 56 Fed.
690; Id., 67 Fed. 189; Id., 19 C. C. A. 152, 72 Fed. 708. After
the last decision of the appellate court, as reported in 19 C. C. A.
152, 72 Fed. 708, supra, the property was sold under the last decree,
and bought by the same purchasers as at the former sale. Subse-
quently the following order was made:

“It is ordered that this case be referred to Thomas B. Felder, Esq., for the
purpose of taking an accounting of the proper receipts and disbursements
incident to the custody and operation of the mortgaged property, and of the
rents and profits earned, or that should have been earned, since its delivery
to the purchasers under the former sale; and to ascertain whether there has
been any conversion of the property counnected with said property, and the
amount and value of the same, as to whether there has been any waste or
damage to the property, and as to whether the same is the result of or-

dinary wear and tear, and as to the liability of the holders of the property
therefor.” *“This March 16, 1896.”

The report of the special master was filed October 9, 1897, so that
the hearing before the special master occupied something like 18
months. Of course, the hearing was at intervals, as suited the con-
venience of counsel and the special master, and as the necessity for
getting witnesses and testimony required. The special master hav-
ing filed his report, exceptions were made by both sides, and it is on
these exceptions that the present hearing is had. The special master
reported against the purchasers of the property $39,713.51, which
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was awarded in favor of the movants against the Galeton Cotton
Mills. The exceptions need not all be noticed in detail, as they can
be embraced under a few general heads, which, it is believed, will
cover the entire subject-matter of the report and the exceptions.

Counsel for the movants claim that the special master evidently
misunderstood the order of the court, and put an incorrect construc-
tion thereon, in that he was required to “take an account of the proper
receipts and disbursements incident to the custody and operation of
the mortgaged property, and of the rents and profits earned, or that
should have been earned, since its delivery to the purchasers under
the former sale.,” They contend that the effect of the order of the

" court was to determine in advance that the correct rule to be observed
by the master was to ascertain what the property by good manage-
ment should have earned, as well as what it really did earn, during
the period in question. My own construction of this order would
be that its meaning was that the special master should ascertain
the proper receipts and disbursements incident to the operation of the
property, if he should find that it had been operated, or what it should
have earned in the event it had not been operated.

The special master, in his report, states the following to be the rule
which he adopted in ascertaining the amount for which the holders of
the property should be held liable:

“The Galeton Cotton Mills, having obtained possession of the property un-
der an erroneous decree of foreclosure, which decree was appealed from and
reversed, the main issue between the parties Is as to the rule of liability
which should be applied under these circumstances. In the opinion of the
undersigned, the Galeton Cotton Mills, being a creditor in possession under
an erroneous decree of foreclosure, is chargeable only with the profits ac-
tually earned, or those which would have been earned but for its own willful
default,”—citing, in support of the foregoing, Page v. Blackshear, 78 Ga. 597,
3 8. K. 423; Hogan v. Stone, 1 Ala. 496; Pom. Eq. Jur. §§ 1216, 1217;
Snell, Bq. 308; Coot, Mortg. 18 Law Lib, p. 152; 2 Jones, Mortg. 1123; Bol-
ling v. Lersner, 26 Grat. 61; Morris v. Budlong, 78 N. Y. 556; Thornbrough
v. Baker, 2 White & T. Lead. Cas. pt. 2, pp. 1979-1983, Eng. note 2.

The special master then proceeds to say that:

“The evidence does not show that the Galeton Cotton Mills has been guilty
of any willful default in the management of the property, or in earning profits,
but, on the contrary, shows that the company has made the most that could
be made out of the property in the condition it was in when they received it.”

In other words, the conclusion of the special master seems to have
been that the Galeton Cotton Mills were only liable to account for
such profits as they made while operating the mills in good faith,
and with reasonable care and prudence. The converse of this propo-
sition is that the company operating the mills would have been liable
for such amounts as they ought to have made if the evidence had
shown that in bad faith they had operated the mills so as to produce
less than they would have produced by ordinarily careful and prudent
management. This seems to state the correct rule on the subject.
The purchasing committee for the bondholders, from whom the
Galeton Mills obtained the property, purchased the same in good faith,
under a decree regularly entered in this court, and at a time when
there had not only been no appeal from the decree, but when an ap-
peal which had been commenced had been abandoned by the then
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counsel for the defendants in the case. They must have come into
possession of the property in good faith, believing in their title. It
was rather a close question as to whether or not the defendants were
entitled to restitution at all after the reversal of the first decree by
the appellate court, but restitution was ordered after a careful in-
vestigation on certain conditions which were not complied with, and
which the appellate court approved. The fact that the appellate
court also entertained some doubt as to whether or not it was a case
where restitution should be ordered, I think, may be fairly gathered
from a clause in the last opinion of that court, in which this language
occurs:

“We are therefore relieved from inquiring into and deciding whether the
case was one calling for restitution, as the appellants insisted that it was.
The court held that it was, and the other parties have not appealed.”

This question is settled now, however, and is referred to only to
show the extent of the good-faith holding of the purchasers when
they entered into possession of this property, and organized the
Galeton Cotton Mills, and to support the conclusion just stated
that they would certainly be held to no stricter rule than to ac-
count for what they actually earned in the operation of the property
while acting in good faith, with ordinary and reasonable care and
diligence. The determination of this question goes very far towards
a determination of all the contentions in the case. 'The master hav-
ing found, after a long and tedious examination of all the books,
papers, and accounts, and after having heard the testimony of all
the parties at interest, that there was no willful default or bad faith
on the part of the Galeton Cotton Mills in the management and con-
trol of this property, it would require, of course, a clear case of
error to justify the court in interfering with the conclusion reached
by him. No such error is apparent. On the contrary, an exam-
ination of the record in this case tends to support the conclusion
of the master. It seems reasonably clear that the mill was operated
in the ordinary and usual way, and also that, instead of the facts
and circumstances showing any bad faith or willful failure to earn
profits, they show the reverse.

In reference to the profits arising from the operation of the mill,
the two principal matters in regard to which it is claimed by the
movants that the special master erred are as to the purchase of the
cotton used in the mill, and the prices paid for it, on the one hand,
and the sale of goods manufactured at the mill, and the prices re-
ceived for the same, on the other hand. It appears from the evi-
dence in the case that the cotton for this mill and for two other
mills was purchased by W. C. & L. Lanier, of West Point, Ga.,
near where the property in question was located. It is claimed
that the cotton furnished the mill by W. C. & L. Lanier was charged
to them at a higher price than cotton ruled in the markets at the
dates that the different lots of cotton were delivered. The argu-
ment in favor of this contention is mostly based on a statement of
averages as to the ruling price of cotton at different dates while the
mill was being operated, compared with the price of the cotton de-
livered to the mills, The claim for the movants seems to be that
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L. Lanier, of the firm of W. C. & L. Lanier (the firm purchasing the
cotton), was the principal owner of the Galeton Mills, and largely
interested in this controversy, and that the cotton was so manipu-
lated as to charge it to this mill at a higher pmce than was just or
proper, and for more than it cost or was worth in the market. The
special master went into an exhaustive examination of this question.
He heard a large amount of evidence, and had at his command all the
data that could be desired for reaching a correct conclusion on the
subject. He found against the movants on this question. The part
of his report referring to the same is as follows:

“It is also insisted by movant that the charges for cotton purchased by the
Galeton Cotton Mills were higher than the ruling market prices at the dates
of purchase, and that the movant is entitled to a credit for the difference be-
tween the price paid for cotton and the price for which it could have been
procured. On this point some of the witnesses testified that the Galeton
Cotton Mills always paid the market prices. The cotton for this mill was
purchased by W. C. & L. Lanier, who also did the buying for several other
mills during the same period of time. Mr. Lanier testified that the cotton was
charged to the Galeton Cotton Mills at the same prices as to the other mills,
the same being the actual cost of the cotton. He admitted that in a few
occasional instances cotton was furnished to the mill ‘to be priced’; but this
was not the custom, and it was done in such comparatively few instances and
comparatively small purchases that it does not appear that the mills sus-
tained loss thereby to any appreciable degree. To support the alleged over-
charge on cotton, the widest latitude was allowed movant in the introduction
of testimony, and a number of witnesses were examined as to the average
market prices of various grades of cotton in Atlanta, Lagrange, Newman, and
West Point. In addition to this, the cotton books of several large firms in
West Point, who dealt in cotton, were introduced. It does not appear from
this mass of testimony that the Galeton Cotton Mills have paid more for
their cotton than it could have been procured for at the time it was bought.
The movant undertakes to establish such an inference by a comparison of
the prices paid with certain average prices of cotton for specified months. It
would seem that the proper way to show such overcharges, if they existed,
would be to show the date and amount of each purchase, and the market
prices of cotton in West Point, on those days. On the whole, the undersigned
is of opinion that the claim of overcharge on cotton purchased by the Galeton
Cotton \I,llls is not made out by the evidence, and therefore said claim is dis-
allowed.’

I have been furnished by the movants with some data, and, after
carefully examining it in connection with the whole case, I am satis-
fied that there is no just reason for interfering with the conclusion
of the special master on this point.

In reference to the claim that goods were sold for less than the
market price, the special master reports as follows:

“It was further claimed by the movant that the products of the mill were
sold at inadequate prices. This mill was engaged in the manufacture of cot-
ton ducks, known as 7 oz. and 10 oz. duck, respectively. The movant intro-
duced a number of witnesses who testified to the average prices of these
classes of goods, and seeks to show, by a comparison of the average prices
testified to by these witnesses with the average prices realized by the Gale-
ton Cotton Mills, that the prices realized were far below what they should
have been. It would seem that, in impeaching the account of sales rendered
by the respondent, the movant ought to show that the goods at the time they
were sold brought less than the market price of the same grade of goods at
the time and place of sale, and that the fallure to realize the best price
obtainable was by the willful default of the respondent. Neither of these
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propositions is shown by the evidence. While the evidence for the movant,
tn the shape in which it is presented, may suggest an inference that the goods
#old for the account of the Galeton Cotton Mills ought to have brought better
prices, still the evidence strongly indicates that the product of this mill was
not equal in quality to those goods to which the market prices applied. Fur-
thermore, so long as the selling agents acted in good faith, and sold the prod-
uct of the mill at fair prices, not necessarily the best prices, the movant
would have no cause to complain. The undersigned is of opinion that the
selling agents of this mill realized a good price for its products, and perhaps
as good prices as could have been gotten under the circumstances; and there-
fore the finding must be against the claim of the movant that the prices real-
ized for the goods produced by the mill were grossly insufficient.”” “Indeed,
in regard to the claim of overvaluation of cotton bought and undervaluation
of goods sold, the undersigned thinks that the movant must stand by the
actual results until he can show that those results are materially different
from what they should have been, and that they were brought about inten-
tionally or by negligence so gross as to amount to willful default.”

I am unable to find any error in this part of the special master’s
report. He had the evidence of these sales all before him, and
seems to have examined quite a number of witnesses as to the
actual price of goods of the same kind and quality, and concluded
“that the selling agents of this mill realized good prices for its
products, and perhaps as good prices as could have been gotten un-
der the circumstances.” And this is justified by the facts. Coun-
sel for the movants were informed during the argument that the
court was thoroughly satisfied, on this branch of the case, with the
master’s report; but it has been argued in the briefs submitted
since, and, though careful consideration has been given the argu-
ment thus submitted, I find no reason to change the conclusion
reached, on the hearing, that the master’s report on this branch of
the case was, at least, fully justified by the evidence, if, indeed, the
evidence did not require it.

In this connection, there was considerable discussion on the argu-
ment of the case, and there has been since in the briefs of counsel,
as to certain books which were offered in evidence by the purchasers
of this property. The books were first admitted in evidence, and
afterwards it turned out from water marks that they were made
after the date of certain entries. For this reason the master ruled
them out, and stated that he would only use them, in his examina-
tion of the case, so far as they were supported by other evidence,
vouchers, ete. It is not shown anywhere, so far as I have seen in
the evidence, that these books contain incorrect entries, or that
anything entered on them was fraudulently entered in order to mis-
lead and deceive. It would seem from what appears in the record
that the master only used these books, so far as they were useful,
in finding other data to use in his investigation of these accounts.
I am wholly unable to see any harm that was done the movant by
such use of these books. If the master verified all of the entries
on the books before he made any use of them, that was certainly
as much as could be asked, and this he seems to have done,

The special master, in his report, says:

“It was shown to the satisfaction of the undersigned that the books intro-

duced by the respondent, to wit, the journal and ledger, purporting to bhe
the books of original entry of the Galeton Cotton Mills, were not such, but
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the same appeared to be copled. Yet all the original vouchers from which,
no doubt, the original books of entry were made up, were brought into the
court, and tendered along' with the sald books. These vouchers were sub-
mitted to the inspection of the adverse party, as well as to the court.”

It is also insisted that the master failed to comply with the seven-
ty-ninth equity rule, which requires all parties accounting before a
master to bring in their respective accounts in the form of debtor
and creditor, etc. The master seems not only to have complied
with this rule, but to have gone beyond it. He not only had a state-
ment of the account brought in by L. Lanier, whom the movants
seem to treat as their real antagonist in the case, but he had all the
books, vouchers, cotton tickets, account sales, etc., before him.
Counsel for the movants referred to this mass of evidence as “bush-
els of papers,” and perhaps this is not an exaggeration. These
papers were shown to the court in baskets at the hearing, and it was
stated, and not denied, that the fullest liberty of examination of the
. whole matter was given to the master and to counsel on the hearing,

This covers the main contentions for the movants in the case as
urged by them on the argument and in the briefs since filed, and dis-
poses of the case so far as it is necessary to discuss the same.

There are three principal grounds of exceptions on the part of the
Galeton Cotton Mills to the report of the master, The first relates
to the conversion by the purchasers of this property of certain sup-
plies and findings which, it is claimed, did not pass by the sale, and
which belonged to the Huguley Manufacturing Company. There is
some difficulty as to this item, but I am unable to find satisfactory
reasons for interfering with the special master’s conclusions. There
is doubt as to its correctness as matter of fact, but it is only a
doubt. T have concluded, therefore, to let this item stand.

The next ground of exception claimed by the purchasers is as to
the waste. I was impressed on the argument with the contention
for the purchasers that the master had misconceived the evidence
on this subject; but an examination of the record shows that there
was evidence to justify this finding. Indeed, if the master had fol-
lowed some of the witnesses in the case, he would have found a
somewhat larger amount than he did against the purchasers on this
head. The ruling of the master upon this subject will not be dis-
turbed. : ‘

The next exception for the purchasers is as to the refusal of the
master to allow the Galeton Cotton Mills the amount paid out by
them for insurance on the property. The finding of the master as
to this item is as follows:

“It appears that respondent kept the buildings, etc., Insured, loss, if any,
payable to the Galeton Cotton Mills, for the sum of $75,000, at the rate of
one per cent. per annum. If the buildings had been consumed by fire, the
proceeds therefor would not have inured in any wise to the benefit of the
mortgagors. There seems to have been no contract wherein the Galeton Cot-
ton Mills was authorized to take out this insurance, and charge the cost of
it to the movant. This being true, it is the opinion of the undersigned that
respondent had no right to charge to operating expenses the insurance pre-
mium; and I therefore find in favor of the movant, against respondent, on
this ground, the sum of $3,502.52 principal, and interest from the 80th day
of April, 1896, at the rate of 7 per cent. per annum, making $3533.45,”
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As to the finding upon this item, I think the special master was
clearly in error. The holding of this property by the purchasing
committee for the bondholders, and afterwards by the Galeton Cot-
ton Mills, has been analogized all along to the holding of real estate
by a mortgagee in possession, with the same rights, duties, and lia-
bilities, except, as is probably true, that these purchasers, in view
of the manner in which they went into possession, the character
of their possession, ete., would be entitled to somewhat more liberal
treatment than the usual mortgagee in possession. It is certain
that no stricter rule of liability would be applied to them than that
to which the law would hold a mortgagee in possession, whose duty
it was to account to the mortgagor; and, even in this view of the
matter, it seems clear that it was the duty of the parties in possession
of this property to keep the same insured. It appears from the report
of the special master that this insurance was taken out in the name of
the Galeton Cotton Mills, but it would have inured, in case of loss, nec-
essarily to the benefit of all parties at interest. A memorandum at-
tached to the brief of counsel for the purchasers shows that the
$3,502.52 was not all on real estate and machinery, but that part of it
was on cotton in process of being worked, and manufactured goods, the
output of the mill. This statement shows $1,815 on buildings and ma-
chirery, and $1,687 on cotton goods. Unquestionably, the purchasers
should be allowed credit for this latter sum,—on the manufactured
goods going through the mill,—as one of the expenses of the business;
and I am about as well satisfied as to their right to the $1,815 on build-
ings and machinery, if this memorandum represents the facts of the
case. Iam unable, however, to find anything in the evidence which
shows any such division of the insurance as this statement claims;
and it must therefore be treated, for the purposes of this decision,—
controlled, as the question here is, by the record,—as insurance on
buildings and machinery. Even allowing this to be true, I think
the special master should bave allowed the purchasers this $3,502.-
52 as a credit. Treating the holders of this property as mortgage
creditors in possession, which is the effect of the decisions hereto-
fore made in the case, it was reasonable care on their part to keep
the property insured for the benefit of all the parties at interest.
It was probably their duty to do so. But, in any event, in case of
fire the amount received for insurance would necessarily have re-
sulted as a benefit to the mortgagors. Looking at it in another
way, it was a proper and legitimate expense connected with the
holding and management of the property, and one which could be
paid out of the earnings of the mill. Why it should not be allowed
as a just expense in connection with the possession and manage-
ment of this property, I am wholly unable to see. No attempt will
be made to discuss the numerous authorities cite¢ pro and con.
Sufficient it is to say that I am satisfied, upon the law and facts,
that the amount above named—$3,502.52 principal, and $353.45 in-
terest—should be deducted from the finding by the master in favor
of the movants. Making this deduction, there would be left $35,-
857.54 in favor of the movants, The other exceptions by both par-
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ties are hereby overruled, and the report of the special master, ex-
cept as stated, is confirmed.

(April 11, 1898))

Application to tax costs, and to apply rents and profits to mortgage
debt. In order to make clear what is now for hearing and determina-
tion in this case, it is probably best to give a brief statement of what
has occurred before during the progress of the case. On the 21st day
of January, 1891, J. J. Robinson, trustee, filed a bill in this court
against the Alabama & Georgia Manufacturing Company, the Hugu-
~ ley Manufacturing Company, and W. T. Huguley, for the purpose of

foreclosing a mortgage executed by the Alabama & Georgia Manu-
facturing Company to Huguley, Yancey, and Robinson, as trustees.
Yancey was dead; Huguley’s interest was alleged to be adverse to
that of the bondholders; so that Robinson filed the bill alone, and
made Huguley a party defendant. The foreclosure was for default
in the payment of interest. The defense was that the interest was
tendered within the time required, and that, under the facts, com-
plainant was not entitled to a foreclosure. A decree was rendered
foreclosing the mortgage, in the circuit court, which was reversed in
the circuit court of appeals, not because of any error in the decision of
the circuit court that complainant was entitled to foreclosure, but on
the ground that there had been no accounting as to the bonds on
which the interest had been paid, and those on which the interest had
not been paid. In the meantime, and pending the appeal, the prop-
erty had been sold, and had been bought in for the bondholders by a
committee representing their interests. The case coming back to the
circuit court, the Huguley Manufacturing Company demanded resti-
tution, which was awarded on certain conditions, which conditions
were not complied with. The case was referred to a master; an ac-
counting was had; and decree subsequently rendered foreclosing the
mortgage for $45,000 principal and $17,005.92 interest, with costs.
Under this decree the property was sold for $66,000. Afterwards the
property was again sold, and bought by the former purchasers; that is,
by the mortgage bondholders. There had elapsed between the first
and second sales three years and eight months. An application
was made to the court by the Huguley Manufacturing Company to
require the purchasers to account for the rents and profits during the
time of their possession under the first sale and before the second
purchase. An order was granted to this effect, and a master ap-
pointed to hear evidence and take the account. The master, after a
lengthy hearing, reported the amount of the rents and profits during
the three years and eight months, which report, after slight modi-
fication, was approved for $35,857.53. Judgment had been entered
in favor of Robinson, trustee, for any deficiency between the amount
of his debt and the amount the property brought at the sale. This
deficiency is a few thousand dollars more than the amount of
the rents and profits found by the master against the purchasers.
Motion is now made by the purchasers (who, as stated, are the bond-
holders) to set off against the amount found for rents and profits dur-
ing the time of their possession between the two sales the amount
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of the deficiency decree. This is resisted by the Huguley Manu-
facturing Company, it claiming the rents and profits; and that is the
question presented now for determination.

The mortgage under which the property was sold was made by the
Alabama & Georgia Manufacturing Company in January, 1884. Sub-
sequently, by reason of some litigation in the state court, the property
of the Alabama & Georgia Manufacturing Company went into the
hands of a receiver, and was sold and bought by persons who after-
wards organized the Huguley Manufacturing Company, they buy-
ing at the receiver’s sale subject to the mortgage of Robinson, trustee.
The contention now is that, while the Alabama & Georgia Manu-
facturing Company owes the amount of the deficiency decree, the
Huguley Manufacturing Company does not, and that, consequently,
a debt against the Alabama & Georgia Manufacturing Company can-
not be set off against a debt which is due to the Huguley Manufactur-
ing Company. The said last-named company having been deprived of
possession by virtue of the first sale, it is claimed that the possession
of the purchasers was in its right, and that the rents and profits
accrued to it. 'The proposition, stated in general terms, is this:
That one buying mortgaged property does not assume the mortgage
debt; that he purchases simply the equity of redemption in the prop-
erty; and that, as he does not undertake to pay the mortgage debt,
he cannot be required to pay it, nor can anything due him be applied
by the court to its payment further than the property itself. Conse-
quently, it is said in this case that the income of this property for the
three years and eight months that the purchasers were in possession
between the two sales was, by virtue of the fact that it was ousted
from the possession at the time of the first sale, rightfully due the
Huguley Manufacturing Company, and that, as the balance of the
mortgage debt was due by the Alabama & Georgia Manufactur-
ing Company, that which was due the Huguley Manufacturing Com-
pany cannot be applied to the payment of the debt of the Alabama
& Georgia Manufacturing Company.

The difficulty about this contention is that the amount found by
the master as rents and profits is the rents and profits of the mort-
gaged property, and during the period when the mortgagee was in pos-
session as purchaser under a sale regularly made under a decree of
this court. Their possession was not illegal in the sense that it was
wrongful or usurped; indeed, it can hardly be said that their pos-
session was illegal at all. They certainly went lawfully into pos-
session of the property; and, after restitution was ordered by the
court, it was on terms which the Huguley Manufacturing Company
failed to comply with; and the effect of that order undoubtedly was
to recognize the justice of their possession until the Huguley Manu-
facturing Company did that which the court had required as a pre
requisite to restitution. But the effect of all the decisions unques
tionably was, and the order of the court was, that their holding was
such that they must account for the rents and profits during the
three years and eight months referred to. Now, should the amount
of the rents and profits be paid over to the Huguley Manufacturing
Company, or be applied to the extinguishment, so far as it will go,
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of the deficiency decree? It seems to me beyond question that the
purchasers are entitled to have this amount applied to the balance
due on their debt. In the first place, the original petition filed in
this ease for restitution and for an accounting, etc., asked that the
rents and profits of the property should be applied to the payment
of the mortgage debt. The language of the petition, after asking that
the rents and profits be applied to the repayment of such portion (if
any) of $10,000 as petitioners might be held liable for, asked that
the same be applied “next to the payment of any interest in arrcars
on said $65,000 of said bonds, and that then the remainder be paid to
the Huguley Manufacturing Company.” In addition to this, the court,
by its order of June 25, 1896, on the coming in of the report of the
commigsioner making the second sale, provided, among other things,
as follows:

*“It is ordered, adjudged, and decreed that, should the said accounting fi-
nally result in a judgment in favor of the Huguley Manufacturing Company,
then such judgment, for any amount thereof in excess of any deficiency due
by the defendants to the complainant in the foreclosure proceeding, shall, for
such excess, be and remain a lien upon said property ig favor of the Huguley
Manufacturing Company, as against the purchasers at said sale, or any per-
sons holding under them,”

So it appears that the Huguley Manufacturing Company, through
its counsel, conceded prior to the filing of the report by the spe-
cial master that the rents and profits should be applied to the ex-
tinguishment of the remainder of the mortgage debt. It is un-
necessary, however, to hold the Huguley Manufacturing Company
to the language of their petition or of the order referred to, for the
purpose of disposing of the case; but the prayer of their petition
and the order of court (which was taken at the time without objec-
tion, so far as appears) indicate what the view of counsel for the
Huguley Manufacturing Company, and, indeed, counsel on both
gides, was at that time as to the application of these rents and prof-
its. But, independently of this, the rule seems to be thoroughly
established by all the authorities that where a mortgagee goes legally
into possession of the mortgaged property, as these mortgagees cer-
tainly did, they are only accountable for the rents and profits by the
application of the same to their debt. These people were in posses-
sion of the property on which they had their mortgage, and were
operating the propertv after having gone into possession under a de-
cree regularly entered and a sale regularly made. They made these
profits themselves. Shall it be held that they must pay them over
to another so long as their debt for the whole of which they were
given a lien on the mortgaged property remains unpaid? It must be
remembered that, during the time of their possession between the two
sales, the whole mortgage debt, with its lien, existed against the
property. The first sale having been set aside, the mortgage and the
whole debt stood open against the property; and therefore these pur-
chasers, it seems to me, stood like any other mortgagee going legally
into possession of property, with the duty to account for the rents and
profits, but with the equal right to apply the same to their mortgage
debt.,
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It is not denied, as T understand it, in the argument, that, if a
bill had been filed alleging insufficiency of this property to pay the
mortgage debt, the court would have appeinted a receiver, and
would have, through such receiver, impounded the rents and profits
in order to apply the same to the mortgage debt. It is replied,
however, that no such allegation was made when the biil was filed,
and no receiver asked for. The result has shown conclusively that
the property was insufficient to pay the mortgage debt, and will
the court deprive these mortgagees of the benefit of that which they
themselves have made in the way of rents and profits while in pos-
session as indicated, when it would, by positive order, have given
them the benefit of such rents and profits if they had asked for them
in advance?

In Kountze v. Hotel Co., 107 U. 8, 378, 2 Sup. Ct. 911, it is held
that:

“Courts of equity always have the power, where the debtor is insolvent,
and the mortgaged property is an insufficient security for the debt, and there
is good cause to believe that it will be wasted or deteriorated in the hands of
the mortgagor, as by cutting of timber, suffering dilapidation, ete., to take
charge of the property by means of a receciver, and preserve, not only the
corpus, but the rents and profits, for the satistaction of the debt.”

This doctrine is reiterated in Grant v. Insurance Co., 121 U. 8.
103, 7 Sup. Ct. 841, and in Shepard v. Pepper, 133 U. 8. 626, 10 Sup.
Ct. 438.

It is not denied by counsel for the Huguley Manufacturing Com-
pany that, as against the Alabama & Georgia Manufacturing Com-
pany, the bondholders in possession would have had the right to
have these rents and profits applied to the extinguishment of the
mortgage debt. Where, by private sale or by judicial sale, the
equity of redemption passes out of the mortgagor into a third party,
does the third party acquire any more rights in this respect than
the mortgagor had? In other words, can the rights of the mort-
gagee which have passed to him by the contract of mortgage be
affected in any way afterwards by change in any respect in the
holder of the equity of redemption? If 80, it would be in the power
of the mortgagor to give to a third party rights as against the
mortgagee which he himself did not have. It being fundamental
that the mortgagee in possession has the right to apply the rents
and profits to the extinguishment of the mortgage debt as against
the mortgagor, the contention, it seems, is entirely unsound that a
third party could claim such rents and profits when the mortgagor
himself could not. 1If so, the inviolability which is supposed to
be attached to valid contracts is to that extent destroyed.

The light thrown on this case by the very full and able argument
on both sides of this last question makes it exceedingly doubtful
in my mind whether the proper direction was given the case at the
time application was made by the Huguley Manufacturing Company
for restitution. I am not clear but that the right course would have
been to have only allowed these purchasers to be disturbed in their
possession by the payment to them of the mortgage debt, or, at least,
of that part of it which, by the finding of the master, had failed to
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receive -interest, and which was entitled to foreclosure. It is, of
course, useless to discuss that matter now, except as it may help to
elucidate the present question. o

In the case of Bryan v, Kales, 162 U. 8. 441, 16 Sup. Ct. 802, it is
held:

“When a mortgagee is in possession of the mortgaged real estate, claiming
under a foreclosure sale, one claiming under mortgagor cannot, by setting
up that the foreclosure proceeding was invalid, maintain ejectment to recover
the premises, without his offering to redeem and tendering payment of the
mortgage debt.”

It is said in reply to this case, by counsel for the Huguley Manu-
facturing Company, that, in the case cited, it was a collateral attack
upon the judgment of foreclosure; but an examination of the opin-
‘ion shows that the court waived any expression of opinion as to
whether it was open to attack collaterally, and simply decided that,
in any event, the rule just announced, which is the headnote of the
case, was the correct one, and was controlling independently of
other questions.

If the Huguley Manufacturing Company could not oust the pur-
chasers in this case without paying to them the entire mortgage
debt, how can they claim for themselves that which went into the
hands of the purchasers as rents and profits of the property, so
long as it is insufiicient to discharge the mortgage debt? It seems
too clear for discussion that, so long as the mortgagees have not
received more than the amount of their debt out of the property,
one claiming under the mortgagor cannot sustain a claim against
them for that which is earned by the property.

A large number of authorities have been cited on both sides in
this discussion, and the argument has taken rather a wide range,
but I deem it unnecessary to go further into the case. The conten-
tion for the Huguley Manufacturing Company has been very thor-
oughly and very ably presented, but I do not think it is sound. It
seems clear to me that these bondholders, as purchasers, while in
‘possession, were entitled to have the rents and profits derived from
the mortgaged property applied to the payment of the bonds and
interest thereon, and that the Huguley Manufacturing Company is
not entitled to the same.

At the time the purchasers took possession of this property, there
were on hand certain “findings,” as they are called,—certain per-
sonal property in the mill, which was not covered by the mortgage.
This was used by the purchasers, and the special master, in his re-
port, values the findings at $2,500. This report was confirmed by
the court. It is apparent that the money derived from this source
cannot be applied to the mortgage debt. It is earnestly contended,
however, that, if this property was not embraced in the mortgage,
the court has nothing to do with.that in this case; that the finding
of the master was gratuitous; and that the parties should be left
to their legal remedy outside of this litigation. The court put
these purchasers in possession of all of this property, and the find-
ings were on hand in the mill at the time the possession was
awarded. Therefore the proper application of this amount, in or-
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der to do complete equity and wind up this litigation, should be de-
termined by the court here and now. As to this $2,500, I am of
opinion that it must be accounted for to the Huguley Manufac-
turing Company by the Galeton Cotton Mills. As to the amount
found by the special master for rents and profits of $35,857.53, it
must go, so far as it does, to the extinguishment of the mortgage
debt and interest. A decree may be taken in accordance with these
views.
(April 26, 1898.)

In this case the court decided, in an opinion filed on the 11th inst,,
that the deficiency decree, as to the balance due the mortgage debt,
could be set off against the rents and profits. It was taken for grant-
ed in that decision that the deficiency decree somewhat exceeded the
amount found for rents and profits.

Counsel for the Huguley Manufacturing Company now seek to
have the rents and profits applied to the deficiency decree, or cred-
ited thereon in such way as to change the result, and leave a small
balance in favor of the Huguley Company. It is claimed that the
rents and profits should be credited on the deficiency decree at the
time such rents and profits were earned, and that the law will now
apply them in that way. 8o, as we have no data by which to ap-
ply them at stated intervals during the period of time that elapsed
between the two sales, the 1st day of August, 1894, is taken by
counsel as a period midway between the first and the last sale,
upon the theory that it will establish an average, and the claim
is that the .credit should be made as of that date. The result of
this contention, if carried into effect, is really to increase the amount
found by the special master in favor of the Huguley Manufacturing
Company. On some of the items found by the special master, he
allowed interest from a period before the last sale, and on some he
did not. So that attention was necessarily called to this fact as it
appeared in the report. If fault was found with this report by the
Huguley Manufacturing Company, it should have excepted to the
same at the time the other exceptions were filed. No exception
was made on this ground, however, and the report was confirmed
at the last term of the court. I think the report of the special
master, as modified by the court in the opinion filed February 23d
of this year, fixes the amount which must be applied as against the
deficiency decree. There is no practical difficulty about the matter,
because, to the extent that these purchasers are compelled to pay
the expenses of this litigation, the same should be credited, I
think, on the amount of rents and profits, which would wipe out
the amount claimed in its favor by counsel for the Huguley Manu-
facturing Company. The motion of counsel to make the application
of these rents and profits in the manner set out in their last petition
to the court will be denied. The matter of apportioning the costs
between the parties will be disposed of by a later order.
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INMAN v. CRAWFORD,
(Circuit Court, N. D. Georgla. May 19, 1898)

MorTaAeE OF TRUST PROPERTY — POWERS OF TRUSTEE — EQUITIES OF MoORT
GAGEE,

A husband became trustee under a will which left property in trust
for his wife, and after her death in trust to be conveyed to her heirs.
After the death of the wife, he continued to act as trustee for his minor
daughter, and, as such, obtained an order of court authorizing him to
mortgage the trust property for money with which to pay taxes and
other liens thercon. Held that, whether the trust be held an executed
or an executory one, the facts that the mortgagor was still acting as
trustee, and was the natural guardian of his daughter, that he borrowed
the money by leave of court, and was shown to have used the most
of it for the legitimate and necessary protection of the trust property,
entitled the mortgagee to enforce the mortgage.

Bill to Foreclose Mortgage.
The report of the special master in this case is ag follows:

To the Honorable the Judges of the Circuit Court of the United States for the
Northern District of Georgia:
I herewith submit my report upon the facts and law of the above-stated
case:
Margaret H. Crawford filed a petition to the superior court of Fulton coun-
ty, on January 12, 1895, alleging, in substance, that Margaret C. Inman was
. about to foreclose a mortgage upon certain property, situated in the city of
Atlanta, in which she owned a one-half undivided interest; that said prop-
erty had been illegally mortgaged by her father, George H. Crawford, affect-
ing to act as her trustee, especially as to two-thirds of her one-half undivided
interest; admitting that one-third of her undivided half interest was subject
to the llen of Mrs. Inman’s mortgage; and praying that said mortgage be
decreed void as to two-thirds of her half interest. Miss Crawford claims
under a deed made by Jonas 8. Smith, dated May 27, 1871, to George G. Craw-
ford, as trustee for his wife, Margaret R. Crawford, the last-named party be-
ing the mother of the complainant. Margaret R. Crawtord died, intestate, De-
cember 20, 1872, leaving three heirs, her husband and two children, the young-
est being Miss Margaret H. Crawford. Complainant insists that the trust under
the Jonas S. Smith deed, above mentioned, terminated at the death of her
mother, and the land in controversy became absolutely the property of her
father, her brother, and herself, In December, 1881, George G. Crawford,
father of the complainant, conveyed to himself, as trustee for his two minor
children, his one-third undivided interest in the property described in the
deed from Jonas Smith to himself, as trustee for his wife, The defendant,
Margaret C. Inman, being a resident of the state of New York, an order was
taken removing the case from the superior court of Fulton county to the
circuit court of the United States; and in October, 1896, the defendant, Mar-
garet C. Inman, filed a cross bill, in which she avers that George G. Craw-
ford, as trustee for his daughter, filed a petition, in which he set forth to
the proper court that it was necessary in order to preserve the property in
question from sale by reason of certain judgments and tax liens, and to im-
prove the property, and to realize certain sums for the support, maintenance,
and education of his daughter, Miss Margaret, the complainant in this case,
to incumber her interest by making the loan of $5,500. The petition was
heard; a guardian ad litem appointed for Miss Crawford. He consented,
and recommended the court that the loan should be obtained, and that it
would, in the light of the facts set forth in the petition of the trustee, be
most beneficial to the estate of his ward that the petition be granted. It was
granted, and the loan of $5,500 obtained from Mrs. Margaret C. Inman. The
complainant testified that at the time of this transaction, in August, 1892,
she was about 20 years of age; that she was served with some paper, the
contents of which she did not know; that she received but little, if



